

# Capacity building regional workshop on labour force survey data management for SADC member states

Workshop Report



This document has been produced with the financial assistance of the European Union. The views expressed herein can in no way be taken to reflect the official opinion of the European Union.

#### ILO/EC PROJECT "MONITORING AND ASSESSING PROGRESS ON DECENT WORK" (MAP)

#### **Workshop Report**

# Capacity building workshop on labour force survey data management in SADC member states

10-12 December 2013

Johannesburg, South Africa

This document has been prepared by the International Labour Office with funding from the European Union under the ILO/EC Project "Monitoring and Assessing Progress on Decent Work" (MAP)

International Labour Office
Pretoria and Geneva

December 2013

#### Copyright © International Labour Organization 2013

Publications of the International Labour Office enjoy copyright under Protocol 2 of the Universal Copyright Convention. Nevertheless, short excerpts from them may be reproduced without authorization, on condition that the source is indicated. For rights of reproduction or translation, application should be made to the Publications Bureau (Rights and Permissions), International Labour Office, CH-1211 Geneva 22, Switzerland. The International Labour Office welcomes such applications.

Libraries, institutions and other users registered in the United Kingdom with the Copyright Licensing Agency, 90 Tottenham Court Road, London W1T 4LP [Fax: (+44) (0)20 7631 5500; email: cla@cla.co.uk], in the United States with the Copyright Clearance Center, 222 Rosewood Drive, Danvers, MA 01923 [Fax: (+1) (978) 750 4470; email: info@copyright.com] or in other countries with associated Reproduction Rights Organizations, may make photocopies in accordance with the licences issued to them for this purpose.

#### ILO Cataloguing in Publication Data

Capacity building workshop on Labour Force Survey Data Management in SADC member states, 10th to 12th December 2013 Crowne Plaza, Rosebank - Johannesburg, South Africa: draft report / International Labour Office, ILO Pretoria Office.- Johannesburg: ILO, 2013

ISBN 978-92-2-128366-9; 978-92-2-128367-6 (web pdf)

International Labour Office; Capacity building workshop on Labour Force Survey Data Management in SADC member states (2013, Johannesburg, South Africa)

 $labour\ force\ survey\ /\ decent\ work\ /\ employment\ /\ labour\ migration\ /\ labour\ market\ information\ system\ /\ data\ collecting\ /\ role\ of\ ILO\ /\ SADC\ /\ Southern\ Africa$ 

13.01.1

The designations employed in ILO publications, which are in conformity with United Nations practice, and the presentation of material therein do not imply the expression of any opinion whatsoever on the part of the International Labour Office concerning the legal status of any country, area or territory or of its authorities, or concerning the delimitation of its frontiers.

The responsibility for opinions expressed in signed articles, studies and other contributions rests solely with their authors, and publication does not constitute an endorsement by the International Labour Office of the opinions expressed in them.

Reference to names of firms and commercial products and processes does not imply their endorsement by the International Labour Office, and any failure to mention a particular firm, commercial product or process is not a sign of disapproval.

This document has been produced with the financial assistance of the European Union. The views expressed herein can in no way be taken to reflect the official opinion of the European Union.

ILO publications can be obtained through major booksellers or ILO local offices in many countries, or direct from ILO Publications, International Labour Office, CH-1211 Geneva 22, Switzerland. Catalogues or lists of new publications are available free of charge from the above address, or by email: pubvente@ilo.org

Visit our website: <a href="www.ilo.org/publns">www.ilo.org/map</a>.

Printed by the International Labour Office, Geneva, Switzerland

#### **Contents**

1. Background	4
2. Attendance	4
3. Opening Ceremony	5
a. Messages of condolences for the death of Mr Nelson Mandela	5
b. Opening Statement by Deputy Director, ILO/Pretoria	5
c. Opening Statement by Director of Labour Market Information and Statistics, Department of Labour, South Africa	5
d. The SADC Secretary apologized	6
e. Objective of the meeting	6
4. Workshop outcomes	6
5. Proceeding of the training	7
a. Measuring and Assessing Decent Work project (MAP)	7
b. SADC Decent Work Programme 2013-2019	7
c. ADePT software for Labour Force Survey data management	8
d. Labour migration and disability modules for Labour Force Survey questionnaire	8
6. Summary of discussion	9
Labour Market Report Template	9
ADePT Software1	0
Labour Migration and Disability Modules1	0
7. Key recommendations and actions to be taken	0
8. Closing Remarks1	1
9. List of participants	2

#### 1. Background

The Southern African Development Community (SADC) Decent Work Agenda 2013-2019 provides a conceptual basis for a comprehensive Labour Market Information System (LMIS). The measurement of performance of the Decent Work Agenda can be achieved using a holistic labour market information system based on inter-sector and multi-stakeholder linkages and relationships. The importance of LMIS is enshrined in the ILO Convention concerning labour statistics, 1985 (No.160) and Recommendation concerning labour statistics, 1985 (No.170).

The Three Year SADC Labour Market Information Implementation Plan for the period 2013 – 2015 highlights the need to: (a) develop an awareness and communication strategy on LMIS; (b) develop or strengthen LMIS institutional structures in Member States and at the regional level; and (c) provide training and capacity building support to Member States to implement and maintain the LMIS.

In this context the SADC Capacity building Workshop on Labour Force Data Management was held from 10 to 12 December 2013 in Rosebank – Johannesburg, South Africa. The workshop was convened by SADC Secretariat with technical and financial support from the ILO /European Commission Project on "Monitoring and Assessing Decent Work (MAP). This workshop is the first regional activity undertaken for the implementation of the new SADC Decent Work Programme 2013-2019.

#### 2. Attendance

The meeting was attended by senior officials working on the production, analysis and dissemination of labour statistics. The participants were drawn from the Ministry of Labour in Member States (One person); National Statistics Offices in Member States (One person), SADC Secretariat, SATUCC Secretariat (One person). The 36 participants came from SADC Member States, namely Angola, Botswana, Lesotho, Malawi, Mozambique, Namibia, Seychelles, South Africa, Swaziland, Tanzania, Zambia, Zimbabwe, SATUCC and SADC Secretary. Democratic Republic of Congo and Mauritius were not represented.

The workshop was conducted by the technical team from ILO Pretoria Office and ILO Geneva (Department of Statistics).

#### 3. Opening Ceremony

#### a. Messages of condolences for the death of Mr Nelson Mandela

The participants expressed their sadness over the loss of a great son of Africa, Mr Nelson Mandela, former President of South Africa, who devoted his life for freedom and democracy in South Africa. One minute of silence was observed.

## b. Opening Statement by Deputy Director, ILO/Pretoria

Dr Joni Musabayana, Deputy Director ILO-Pretoria, welcomed delegates to the workshop. He highlighted that Mr Nelson Mandela, former President of South Africa, was a great leader not only for South Africa, but for Africa and the World. He expressed appreciation to the SADC Member States for their participation in the workshop and gratitude to the ILO Geneva team for providing technical support to facilitate the understanding of the data management software (ADePT). He expressed his expectation to see a fruitful deliberation in the workshop in particular on the following issues: Harnessing the partnership between the Departments of Labour and National Statistics Offices; Work toward harmonization of concepts and methods to avoid discrepancies of information within SADC; Ensure that the results are released within the acceptable time frame in order to be relevant in guiding the current policy planning; Ensure that there is regular release of labour market information which will make the statistical activities relevant. He stressed that, the release of information through regular fact sheets, for example, helps mobilizing support to labour market information and analysis activities in terms of funds and capacity. This will increase the visibility of labour market information and keep the topic high on national agenda.

# c. Opening Statement by Director of Labour Market Information and Statistics, Department of Labour, South Africa

Mr Abrahams Mutedi, Director of Labour Market Information and Statistics, in the Department of Labour, South Africa, as the host country presented his opening statement on behalf of the Director General. He presented an apology on behalf of the DG who could not make it because of other commitments related to the bereavement of the former President N. Mandela in the country. He underscored the need of the SADC Member States to work together in improving the quality of statistics from data collection to data dissemination. He acknowledged the difficulties across Member States in developing adequate analytical capacity and providing meaningful interpretation of labour statistics. He thanked SADC and ILO for organizing this Workshop on Labour Force Survey Data Management in order to implement the SADC Labour Market Information System (LMIS) in the context of SADC Decent Work Agenda. He welcomed and wished all participants a fruitful discussion during the workshop.

#### d. The SADC Secretary apologized

Due to the clash of SADC Secretariat activities, the Representative of SADC Secretariat was not able to attend the opening ceremony.

#### e. Objective of the meeting

Dr Coffi Agossou, Senior Labour Statistics Specialist from ILO (DWT, Pretoria) presented the objectives of the meeting which included the following:

- To strengthen the technical capacity of the staff of National Statistics Offices and Ministries of Labour and Employment in the use of labour force survey data for the production of labour market information and analysis.
- To provide inputs for the development of national and regional labour market information databases in SADC based on the SADC Minimal list of indicators and standard definitions and concepts.
- To contribute to the implementation of SADC Decent Work Programme 2013-2019 "Outcome 1.1: Functional SADC Labour Market Information System harmonized and strengthened".

#### 4. Workshop outcomes

- 1. The participants' knowledge on the Monitoring and Assessing Decent Work was improved. The key outcomes of the "ILO /EC Project on "Monitoring and Assessing Decent Work (MAP)" were shared for scaling up;
- 2. Participants are able to use ADePT to produce labour market indicators based on ILO standards;
- 3. The SADC template of employment report based on SADC minimal list of decent work indicators was drafted and adopted;
- 4. The labour migration module was drafted and adopted; it should be part of the Labour Force Survey Questionnaire in all SADC Member States after Ministers and Social Partners' approval;
- 5. The disability module was drafted and adopted; it should be part of the Labour Force Survey Questionnaire in all SADC Member States after Ministers and Social Partners approval.

#### 5. Proceeding of the training

## a. Measuring and Assessing Decent Work project (MAP)

In order to guide the participants for the draft template report, an ILO Expert did a presentation on "How measuring and monitoring decent work, the ILO methodology and related tools".

In this regard, (1) participants were reminded of the importance of measuring and monitoring the decent work; (2) the ILO standard conceptual framework in measuring the decent work was presented; (3) the methodology and lessons emanating from the experiences from pilot phase as explained in the manual on lessons learned from the project of measuring and assessing the decent work (MAP) were shared; (4) the instruments developed in support of countries such as the manual on the indicators of decent work, the guidelines on the analysis of indicators and the country profile were presented. As supporting documents, the Manual on Decent Work Indicators, the Guidelines on Assessing progress towards decent work at the national level and the Guidelines on key information for analyzing decent work indicators in an integrated approach and according to national contexts were commented and shared with the participants.

As achievement, the participants' knowledge on the Monitoring and Assessing Decent Work was improved. The key outcomes of the "ILO /EC Project on "Monitoring and Assessing Decent Work (MAP)" were shared for scaling up.

#### b. SADC Decent Work Programme 2013-2019

The LMIS is one of the key priorities in the SADC Decent Work Programme approved in May 2013 in Maputo, Mozambique. An ILO Expert presented the SADC Decent Work Programme 2013-2019 emphasizing "Outcome 1.1: Functional SADC Labour Market Information System harmonized and strengthened" as well as Output 1.1.1: Capacity for LMIS in SADC Member States strengthened and Output 1.1.2: Institutional framework and mechanisms for collecting, analysing and disseminating labour market information is established and strengthened at country and SADC level.

The SADC Labour Market Information Implementation Plan covers a three year period from 2013 to 2015 highlighting the need to: (a) develop an awareness and communication strategy on LMIS; (b) develop or strengthen LMIS institutional structures in member states and at the regional level; and (c) provide training and capacity building support to member states to implement and maintain the LMIS.

A fact sheet of indicators, which is being implemented in Lesotho, as pilot country, was also presented.

The SADC Minimal list of decent work indicators as well as the key related concepts on Employment, Unemployment, Youth, Labour Force, Informal Employment and Underemployment were discussed.

As result, a Template of Employment report based on SADC Minimal list of decent work indicators was drafted and approved by the participants.

# c. ADePT software for Labour Force Survey data management

Two ILO Experts, Mr Theodoor Sparreboom and Mr Francisco Guerreiro (Department of Statistics, Geneva), presented and led the training on ADePT software for Labour Force Survey Data Management. The first part of the training was conducted with plenary presentations in an interactive format. The second part was practical based on individual and group exercises using the ADePT software.

ADePT is designed and maintained by the World Bank to produce sets of predefined analytical results (tables, graphs) based on ILO statistical standards and tabulations. The World Bank and ILO worked together to produce the ADePT ILO Labour Market Indicators module, and an initial version was launched in February 2013.

ADePT software therefore provides a platform for automated labour market information and analysis using international concepts and definitions as agreed by the ILO International Conference of Labour Statisticians. The software allows for timely production of analytical results (standard tables), not only by statistical agencies but also by the wider group of users and labour market analysts. The advantages of ADePT include the fact that it can be used with limited knowledge of statistical software, while the software is freely available.

At the workshop, the ADePT software was placed in the context of the development of labour market information systems, and this presentation also covered the use of ILO indicators including the Key Indicators of the Labour Market. The 8<sup>th</sup> edition of the KILM was launched in Geneva during the workshop. Key concepts relating to labour market indicators, data sources and data management were discussed in the context of the use of the ADePT tool. The training on ADePT was based on country-examples drawn from the SADC region and elsewhere.

The presentation of the software was well-received by the participants. They noticed that in order to use the ADePT, LFS data should be at the final stage of processing, and the capturing, editing and any other aspects of data manipulation should have been completed. ADePT is therefore not replacing existing tools or software that is used for these purposes, but is primarily aimed at facilitation tabulation, analysis and dissemination of labour market information. Several countries expressed their intention to start using the software. Several technical suggestions were also made on adjustments and refinements of the software, which will be taken into account for the development of the next version.

At the end of the training, the participants had an improved understanding of key labour market indicators and how best they can produce labour market indicators on the facts sheet based on ILO standards using ADePT.

#### d. Labour migration and disability modules for Labour Force Survey questionnaire

An ILO expert presented a PowerPoint provided by the ILO Labour Migration Branch (Geneva). The presentation emphasized improving labour migration statistics data collection to better inform policy making. The current ILO tools, the key concepts and definitions, the relevance of labour migration statistics and what type of data is needed were highlighted in the presentation.

The ILO expert also presented the SADC Decent Work Programme 2013-2019 "Outcome 1.2 – Labour migration systems developed".

As result, participants adopted the draft questions which will constitute the Labour Migration Module that should be part of the Labour Force Survey Questionnaire in all SADC Member States.

They also adopted the draft questions which will constitute the Disability Module that should be part of the Labour Force Survey Questionnaire in all SADC Member States.

#### 6. Summary of discussion

#### **Labour Market Report Template**

The participants agreed that the Ministry of Labour of Member State should be in charge of submitting the SADC Employment and Labour Sector report every two years, with strong involvement of the National Statistics Offices (NSO) even in the reporting stages. In this regard, the SADC Member States will dedicate more efforts to building good partnerships between Departments of Labour and National Statistics Offices for a better coordination of the Labour Market Information System. SADC Secretariat is recalled to assist in the drafting of the framework of MoU between the Ministry of Labour and NSO.

In order to avoid discrepancies and incomparability of information across SADC countries in reporting the status of decent work programmes, the SADC Member States are bound to work toward harmonization of concepts and methods. At the same time, it is important that labour market information is released within an acceptable time frame.

The participants urged the SADC Secretariat to assist countries with limited resources in fund raising for labour force surveys to take place at least every two years.

Regarding key concepts and definitions, the participants recognized that SADC Member States use both the strict and broad definition of unemployment in order to provide information in line with ILO standards as well as the African Union Commission requirement in the framework of the harmonization of Labour Market Information System.

The participants adopted the following variables for inclusion in the reporting template:

- Education level completed: Less than primary (no education), Primary, Secondary, Tertiary.
- Age groups: 15-24 years, 25-34 years, 15-64 years, 65 years and above; youth are people aged from 15 to 34 years.

The draft of the document is in annex.

#### **ADePT Software**

In order to have a successful implementation of ADePT, the SADC Member States were reminded of the dimensions of quality of statistical processes: relevance, timeliness, punctuality, accessibility, methodological soundness (clarity) and the need for comprehensive metadata and usable documentation.

In view of comparisons of data over time, the SADC Member States were also reminded to use the same standards in terms of variable definition, naming convention and scope between different surveys periods; this would also avoid problems when loading time series data in ADePT. In the preparation of the report, the SADC Member States can also provide full definition in the footnotes where it deviates from the ILO standards definitions.

#### **Labour Migration and Disability Modules**

The questions were discussed and some modifications were requested by the participants. The question on the frequency of data collection on labour migration and people living with disability was also raised, but there was no proposal on this point. The draft of these modules is provided in annex.

# 7. Key recommendations and actions to be taken

The participants from SADC Member States recommended:

- 1. Refinement of the ADePT software in order to incorporate the needs of SADC countries (i.e. youth age limit to be 35 years, use of both broad and strict unemployment rates, etc.).
- 2. Capacity building of Member States by 2014 on:
  - the use of ADePT software;
  - the New Resolution of International Conference of Labour Statisticians (19<sup>th</sup> ICLS) on Employment, Unemployment and Underemployment;
  - statistics on the informal economy.
- 3. Identification of sustainable sources of funding of Labour Force Survey in SADC Member States.
- 4. Submission of (1) the draft template report; (2) the module on migration; and (3) the module on disability for consideration of SADC technical committee and subsequently for SADC Ministerial Committee and Social Partners for approval.
- 5. Submission of the first SADC report on Labour market to SADC Secretariat one year after the approval of the draft template.
- 6. Strengthening of the partnership between the Ministry of labour and National Statistical Offices through the MOU (Memorandum of Understanding).

#### 8. Closing Remarks

The representatives of ILO and South African Labour Department thanked the participants for their active participation and results achieved during the three-day' workshop.

The SADC representative, Mr Arnold Chitambo, Senior Programme Office in charge of Employment and Labour provided the closing remarks with way forward particularly the plan of action reporting of information related to SADC Decent Work Agenda. He explained that the recommended report template, the labour migration and disability modules will be presented to the SADC technical working group who will report later to the SADC Employment and Labour Sector.

The meeting was closed on 12<sup>th</sup> December at 16:05.

### 9. List of participants

Country	Name	Surname	Organization	E-mail
Angola	Luis	Ezequiel	National Institute of Statistics	ezequiel.luis@ine.gov.ao
Angola	Graciano	Bernabé	Ministry of Public Administration Labour and Social Security	gracianolamberga@gmail.com
Botswana	Keitumetse	Bame	Human Resource Development Advisory Council	ktlhabologang@hrdac.org.bw
Botswana	Mpho	Keboi	Statistics	Mkeboi@gov.bw
Botswana	Moses	Sethibe	Department of Labour and Social Security	msethibe@gov.bw
ILO	Theodore	Sparreboom	ILO	sparreboom@ilo.org
ILO	Francisco	Gueirrero	ILO	gueirrero@ilo.org
ILO	Joni	Musabayana	ILO	musabayana@ilo.org
ILO	Coffi	Agossou	ILO	agossou@ilo.org
ILO	Tshepo	Kau	ILO	kau@ilo.org
ILO	Рорру	Hlongwane	ILO	hlongwane@ilo.org
ILO	Rodrick	Ndoro	ILO	ndoro@ilo.org
Lesotho	Maqenehelo	Mahlo	Ministry of Labour and Employment	puseletsophate@ymail.com
Lesotho	Moseli	Khoeli	Lesotho Bureau of Statistics	m.khoeli@bos.gov.ls
Malawi	Isaac	Chirwa	National Statistical Office	isaacchirwa@gmail.com
Malawi	Medson	Makwemba	National Statistical Office	mmakwemba@statistics.gov.mw
Mozambique	Celso,	Zunguza	Department of demographic studies	celsozunguze@yahoo.com
Namibia	Daniel	Oherein	Namibia Statistics Agency	doherein@nsa.org.na
Namibia	Linda Vute	Shitenga	Namibia Statistics Agency	Ishitenga@nsa.gov.na
Namibia	Aina	Shinyemba	Ministry of Labour	ashinyemba@mol.gov.na
SADC	Arnold	Chitambo	SADC	achitambo@sadc.int

SATUCC	Paliani	Chinguwo	SATUCC	paliani.chinguwo@satucc.org
Seychelles	Maria Judith	Bacco	National Bureau of Statistics	maria@nbs.gov.sc
Seychelles	Sandro	Ernesta	Ministry of Labour and Human Resources	Sandro.ernesta@employment.gov.sc
South Africa	Abrahams	Mutedi	Department of Labour	Abrahams.mutedi@labour.gov.za
South Africa	Muthethwa	Samson	Department of Labour	Samson.muthethwa@labour.gov.za
South Africa	Desiree	Manamela	Department of Labour	desireem@statssa.gov.za
South Africa	Jean Marie	Hakizamana	STATS SA	Jean.marie@statssa.gov.za
Swaziland	Sicelo	Nxumalo	Ministry of Labour (HRD unit)	ynxumza@gmail.com
Swaziland	Fortune	Mhlanga		
Tanzania	Hashim	Njowele	National Bureau of Statistics	hashim.njowele@nbs.go.tz
Tanzania	Godwin	Mpelumbe	Ministry of Labour and Employment	godwin.mpelumbe@kazi.go.tz
Zambia	Hassan	Banda	Ministry of Labour and Social Security	hgbanda@gmail.com
Zambia	Leonard	Kakungu	Central Statistics Office	lkakungu@gmail.com
Zimbabwe	Samuel	Hobwani	Department of Labour Administration	shobwani@yahoo.com
Zimbabwe	Tidings	Matangira	Zimbabwe National Statistics	tmatangira@zimstat.co.zw